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ARKANSAS POWER & LIGHT COMPANY
P. O. BOX 551/LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS 72203/(501) 377 3525

May 5, 1989

T. GENE CAMPBELL
Vice Presiderit - Nuclear

CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

OCAN058901

U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission
Document Control Desk
Mail Station P1-137
Washington, DC 20555

ATTN: Director,

Office of Enforcement

SUBJECT: Arkansas Nuclear One - Units 1 & 2
Docket Nos. 50-313 and 50-368
License Nos. DPR-51 and NPF-6
Reply to Notice of Violation and Proposed
Imposition of Civil Penalty Relating to
Prompt Corrective Action and Control of
Safety-Related Equipment

Gentlemen:

By letter dated April 7, 1989, the NRC transmitted to Arkansas Power and
Light Company (AP&L) a Notice of Violation and Proposed Imposition of Civil
Penalties based on Inspection Report Nos. 88-35, 88-38, 88-42, and 88-48.
In the enforcement action, the NRC Staff cited two Severity Level III
violations for which it proposed civil penalties. Pursuant to 10 C.F.R.
S 2.201 and the terms of the Notice, attached is AP&L's reply to the
violations.

Upon careful review of the Notice and the facts surrounding the violations
cited therein, AP&L has elected not to protest the civil penalties proposed,
either in whole or in part. Accordingly, payment of the civil penalties is
attached.

Nevertheless, we believe it appropriate to reiterate AP&L's response to some
of the broad concerns articulated by the NRC in the enforcement action. As
discussed in the Enforcement Conference on January 23, 1989, and documented
in our follow-up correspondence of February 9,1989 (OCAN028902), AP&L has
aggressively pursued the identification and resolution of the root cause of
each of the violations. We have not restricted our inquiries to the narrow
issues of the individual findings, but have sought to identify and correct /|
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any underlying sources of potential broeder concerns. With regard to the
violations cited, we believe that a thorough analysis has been completed,
that appropriate root causes have been identified, and that comprehensive
corrective actions have been and are being taken by AP&L. These corrective j
actions -- when fully implemented and institutionalized -- will lead to an
increased commitment to excellence and enhanced safe operation of ANO.

With respect to the first violation, the NRC Staff cited several examples of
issues which were not promptly addressed and resolved by AP&L. The Staff
suggested that this evidenced a " programmatic breakdown" in the corrective
action area. On a positive note, none of the individual issues involved was
safety significant. Further, these issues were being resolved in accordance
with the understanding that no safety <.gnificant issues existed.
Nevertheless, we have recognized the nt:d to improve performance in this
area. As a result, as discussed in the attached response, AP&L has further
refined its corrective action program and instituted efforts to increase
management emphasis on that program. There will be better documentation of
significance and operability determinations, new and improved reports of j

resolution timeliness trends directly to management, increased quality
surveillance of the corrective action system, and increased management
emphasis on resolution of identified deficiencies. I will assure that
sufficient priority and resources are assigned to these efforts.

With respect to the second violation, the NRC Staff cited failures to
control safety-related equipment. As is discussed in the attached
10CFR2.201 reply, we have instituted specific corrective actions to address
the individual events involved and the root causes. More broadly, AP&L
management is committed to reaffirming in all plant personnel the concepts
of quality, responsibility, and commitment. These concepts include: (1)
the understanding that quality is top priority; (2) the professional
philosophy that all individuals will be responsible for their work, and
ultimately for safe and reliable operations; and (3) the understanding that
all personnel must strictly adhere to all procedures and administrative
controls and anyone failing to do so will be held accountable.

In addition to the review performed by the applicable managers of each
specific example and the associated broader issues, I appointed an internal
Senior Study Group consisting of key ANO managers to evaluate the issues and
events that arose or occurred during 1R8. Following this internal,
self-critical evaluation, the resulting conclusions and recommendations of
the Senior Study Group were themselves independently scrutinized. This
second review was performed by senior industry personnel whose experience
and expertise have been gained from outside the AP&L organization. In
general, tnis independent assessment reaffirmed the results and
recommendations received from the Senior Study Group. We are in the process
of evaluating further the results and implementing recommendations, as
appropriate. This, I believe, has been a positive self-assessment which
should result in better communication of management objectives and
priorities.
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In summary, I remain confident that the ANO units have been and will
continue to be operated safely. However, the events leading to this
enforcement action have led us to analyze the current state of affairs and
rededicate our resources to improving our safety consciousness. Although we
have not protested the civil penalty or requested mitigation or remission
based on these comprehensive and aggressive corrective actions, I believe
our efforts merit your recognition. I am confident that they will
satisfactorily address your concerns.

Very truly yours, /

JWxg. , vgV'

T.GeneCampbelk

TGC:de

Attachments
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STATE OF ARKANSAS )
) SS

COUNTY OF PULASKI .)

I, T. Gene Campbell, being duly sworn, subscribe to and say that I am

Vice President, Nuclear for Arkansas Power & Light Company; that I have full

authority to execute this oath; that I have read the document numbered

OCAN058901 and know the contents thereof; and that to the best of my

knowledge, information and belief the ;tatements in it are true.

Y h D,

T. Gene Campbell

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN T0 before me, a Notary Public in and for the

County and State above named, this [ * day of 44/' ,

1989.

01 tam /[aca d
~

Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

$$-/0-$0
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REPLY i

T0
h3TICE OF VIOLATION

AND
PROPOSED CIVIL PENALTY

On April 7,1989, the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) issued to the
Arkansas Power & Light Company (AP&L) a Notice of Violation (NOV) and
Proposed Imposition of Civil Penalty relating to the timeliness of
corrective action and to the adequacy of control on work activities
involving safety-related equipment. These issues were discussed at length
with the NRC Staff at an enforcement conference held in Arlington, Texas on
January 23, 1989. As was noted during the enforcement conference, AP&L
conducted an extensive review and analysis of the areas of concern as well
as supporting examples cited by the NRC. This evaluation was comprehensive,
detailed and probing. While the evaluation reflected a number of favorable
observations, it also identified areas where improvements were warranted.

Strong points which emerged from the review included clear indications that
AP&L has instituted a more aggressive posture in identifying and correcting
weaknesses. As evidence of this, most of the specific examples supporting
the areas of concern cited by the Staff were self-identified. Additionally,
one of the subject areas of the NOV (timeliness of corrective action) is an
area where AP&L has focused management attention as well as devoted
resources to improve performance. Our implementation of a new corrective
action program during 1988 has already shown its effectiveness.

Needed improvements were identified in several areas. These included
organizational assignments, management of our personnel and physical
resources and procedural adequacy, as well as the implementation of station
procedures.

These conclusions have subsequently been validated and expanded upon by a
Senior Study Group consisting of key AN0 Managers and a second group of
Senior industry personnel outside AP&L's organization.

After evaluating the information presented in the January 23 Enforcement
Conference, the NRC issued the April 7 NOV. The NOV statos that AP&L
violated Criterion XVI, Appendix B to 10CFR50, Criterion XIV, Appendix B to
10CFR50, Criterion V, Appendix B 10CFR50 and Station Technical Specification
3.4.1 of Arkansas Nuclear One, Unit 1 (ANO-1). These violations were
assessed by the Staff as two (2) Severity Level III violations. The
specific violations and AP&L's response are presented below.

,
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I. NRC Statement or Violation Involving Failure to Take Prompt Corrective
Action

Criterion XVI of Appendix B to 10 CFR Part 50 requires in part that
conditions adverse to quality, such as failures, malfunctions,
deficiencies, deviations, cefective material and equipment, and
nonconformances are promptly identified and corrected.

Contrary to the above, AP&L failed to promptly correct identified
conditions adverse to quality as evidenced by the following:

A. Licensee Memorandum NDC-10313 dated January 8,1989, identified
that certain calculated equipment nozzle loads exceeded design
and/or vendor-allowable loads. For example, the calculated load
on the decay heat removal pump suction nozzle was 14,870 ft-lbs
versus an allowable of 3,800 ft-lbs. A report for a nozzle-load
study performed by Bechtel was issued to AP&L on
December 31, 1985. This report again identified equipment nozzle
loads which exceeded vendor-allowable loads in 22 cases and
Bechtel Power Corporation-allowable loads in seven cases.
Corrective action for this matter was not prompt in that the
identified deviations from allowable equipment nozzle loads were
not resolved until November 1988.

B. Report of Abnormal Condition (RAC) 2-88017 issued by the licensee
on February 3, 1988, documented a problem with Unit 2 engineered
safety features (ESF) response time testing methodology.
Procedure 2305.03, " Engineered Safety Features System Response
Time Test," did not measure or account for the time required for
ESF actuated pumps or fans to accelerate and develop required
discharge pressure or air flow. The discrepancy in the test
method applied to the previous ESF response time tests for high
pressure safety injection pumps, low pressure safety injection
pumps, containment spray pumps, emergency feedwater pumps, and
containment cooling fans. Corrective action for this identified
condition was not prompt in that testing of components and
comparison with Technical Specification (TS) requirements was not
completed until October 27, 1988.

| C. Concerns with performance of the Unit 1 penetration room
ventilation system were identified by an NRC inspector and
documented as an unresolved item in NRC Inspection Report
50-313/87-18; 50-368/87-18 issued on July 16, 1987. These
concerns related to the ability of the system to produce a vacuum
in and draw air from each of the six penetration rooms in
accordance with the system design. Licensee test data indicated

| that vacuum in the penetration rooms was significantly less than'

the low vacuum alarm setpoint during system operation. Corrective
action to verify that this system would perform as designed was
not prompt in that system performance was not verified until'

November 1988.
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D. Condition Report-(CR) 1-88-0122 initiated by the licensee on :

August 5, 1988, identified a deficiency in that there were no
existing stress calculations for' certain piping containing Valves
CV-2123, CV-2126, CV-2133, and CV-2136 in the Unit 1 penetration
room ventilation system. The CR stated that operability of the
system during a seismic event could not be shown by the existing
qualifying calculations since the weights of the valves were not
included in the analyses. Corrective action for this issue was
not prompt in that the deficiency was not scheduled to be resolved
prior to the plant entering an operational condition where this
system was required to be operable. The assigned action had a due
date of December 1, 1988, but the plant was scheduled to restart
from a refueling outage in November 1988.

AP&L Response

1. Admission or Denial of the Alleged Violation

AP&L admits that a violation of NRC regulations occurred.

2 .- Reasons for the Violation

AP&L submits that the underlying cause of the cited violations was
inadequate oversight of the various programs used to track and
resolve identified deficiencies. AP&L has noted certain
conditions associated with the implementation of those programs
which contributed to the violations noted by the Staff. In
particular, AP&L recognited evidence of (1) lack of complete
understanding of the programs by some personnel, (2) insufficient
attention to timely resolution and prioritization of identified
conditions, and (3) absence of comprehensive documentation of
initial determinations made under those programs (e.g.,
operability, deportability).

3. Corrective Steps That Have Been Taken and the Results Achieved

AP&L Fas completed the necessary evaluations, testing and/or
modifications to resolve each of the individual deficiencies. (
These evaluations and tests verified that there was minimal safety !

signi1 4cance associated with each of the conditions.
Specifically, proper documentation is now on file for each nozzle 1

identified in the original PNSC and for the PRVS piping.
Modifications have been made to the ANO-1 penetration rocm
ventilation system to enhance its performance. Additionally, the
18 month surveillance tests has been modified to include overall
system functionality requirements. The ESF response time
surveillance procedures have been modified to include the time
required for ESF actuated pumps or fans to accelerate and develop
required discharge pressure or air flow.

Prior to these concerns being raised, AP&L recognized the need to
consolidate procedures for the identification tracking and
resolution of abnormal events, with an objective of more prompt
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resolution of issues. Consequently, the CR procedure was
developed and implemented to replace the earlier Report of
Abnormal Condition (RAC), Security Infraction Reports (SIR),
Non-Conformance Reports (NCR), and the Potential Nuclear Safety
Concern (PNSC) resolution systems.

The newly implemented CR program not only provides a consistent
administrative means for reporting internally, but also resulted
in the establishment of an In-House Events Analysis group (IHEA)
whose sole responsibility is to review, evaluate, track, and
report to management on CRs.

We believe that the new CR system has been a significant
improvement in the programmatic handling of potential deficiencies
and was the key to AP&L's ability to self-identify many of these
issues. Nonetheless, some areas for improvement of that process
have also been identified.

Based upon (ur self assessments conducted in response to the
violation,.dditional enhancements to the CR program have been
implemented. These include conducting frequent management reviews
of new CRs ta assign operability / deportability assessments,
issuance of reports to management identifying overdue
operability / deportability assessments and trends, providing for
aggressive enforcement of time limits in the procedure and,
development of a formal procedure for performing operability
assessments to provide additional guidance on form and content -
with an intent of improving the level of documentation for
operability assessments. To support the improvements in the
administrative tools employed to identify and resolve issues, AP&L
management will increase its emphasis on thorough resolution of
identified deficiencies. Furthermore, we will focus on areas
where trends indicate that timely resolution of an issue or issues
appear to be unsatisfactory.

AP&L has addressed the documentation issues inherent in these
concerns as well. Since these items were identified, AP&L has
performed evaluations of open Design Engineering items, open RACs,
PNSCs, and SIRS to ensure that no safety concerns exist and that
the priority for resolution is appropriate. PNSCs remaining open
have been converted to CRs.

4. Corrective Steps That Will Be Taken to Avoid Further Violations

In addition to those actions already taken, AP&L plans to conduct
further training of t .e Design Engineering Department on the CR
program. This will include instructions on the administration of
the CR program, performing root cause analyses, and conducting
operability / deportability determinations. Initial training on
these topics is scheduled to be completed by June 1, 1989. To
ensure maintenance of individuals' skilk, training on the CR

|
program will be factored into the Engineering training program.

|
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Additionally, efforts will be made to further enhance the planning
and scheduling system within the plant's engineering department.
A program is also being developed to improve engineering training
to ensure an appropriate understanding of design and Technical
Specification requirements. _ Increased quality surveillance of the
corrective action system will be initiated also. These actions |

are scheduled to be completed by September 1, 1989.

We believe these steps will ensure timely resolution of identified j

| deficiencies in the future.

5. Date of Full Compliance

For the identified deficiencies, full compliance has been
achieved. As noted, additional enhancements are being
implemented. ;

i

II. NRC Statement of Violations Involving Inadequate Control of Safety-
Related Equipment Status '

A. Violation of Technical Specifications

TS Section 3.4.1 states that the reactor shall not be heated above
280 F unless both emergency feedwater (EFW) pumps and their flow
paths are operable.

Contrary to the above, on November 24, 1988, Unit I was heated
above 280 F with the P7A turbine driven emergency feedwater pump
inoperable because it was not coupled to its turbine driver.

B. Violation of 10 CFR Part 50, Apper: dix B, Criterion XIV

Criterion XIV of Appendix B to 10 CFR Part 50 requires that
measures shall be established for indicating the operating status
of systems of the nuclear power plant, such as by tagging valves
and switches, to prevent inadvertent operation.

Contrary to the above, on November 26, 1988, it was found that
measures were not established to prevent inadvertent operation of
the uncoupled P7A turbine driven emergency feedwater pump. The
system was aligned for automatic initiation and inadvertent
operation was possible for a period of up to 4 days, creating the
potential for equipment damage or personnel injury.

C. Violations of 10 CFR Part 50, Appendix B, Criterion V

Criterion V of Appendix B to 10 CFR Part 50 requires that
activities affecting quality shall be prescribed by documented
instructions, procedures, or drawings of a type appropriate to the
circumstances and shall be accomplished in accordance with these
instructions, procedures, or drawings.
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1. Contrary to the above, on December 16, 1988, with Unit 1 in
hot standby, appropriate work instructions were not'

implemented for a seal weld repair of valve MU-45C. After
repairing this manual high pressure safety injection valve,
the valve was reopened before the packing gland studs were

| reinstalled, resulting in an approximate 25 gpm high pressure
reactor coolant system leak.

2. Contrary to the above, on December 16, 1988, the licensee
discovered that previous maintenance work on high pressure
safety injection manual isolation valve MU-45D had been
performed without implementation of appropriate work
instructions. This led to the improper reassembly of the
valve in that the yoke was only partially threaded (three
threads) into the valve body, creating the potential for a
failure of this yoke and an unisolable reactor coolant system
leak.

AP&L Response

1. Admission or Denial of the Alleged Violation

AP&L admits that a violation of NRC regulations occurred.

2. Reasons for the Violation

AP&L has identified several common elements regarding the
deficiencies comprising this violation. First, was failure to
follow or pay adequate attention to procedures. It was also
determined that there was a lack of clear definition and
understanding by responsible personnel of certain elements of
their individual and organizational responsibilities for correctly
accomplishing work activities. Another contributing factor
involved the interface between Maintenance and Operations
personnel with respect to equipment removal from, and return to,
service.

With regard to the heatup of ANO-1, without both emergency
feedwater pumps operable, certain factors appear to have been
responsible for the event occurrence. Apparent ambiguity in the
wording of the governing Technical Specifications and a failure of
Operations to participate, although not so required by procedures.
in the walkdown of the aforementioned emergency feedwater pr ,
following a provisional release from Modifications both
contributed to the failure to identify this condition prior to
going above 280 F.

AP&L also identified two causes for the failure to establish
measures to prevent the inadvertent actuation of the uncoupled
emergency feedwater pump referenced above. First, there was a
failure to detect and correct a lack of strict compliance with the
Hold Card procedure (either because of insufficient
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oversight / review and/or apparent ambiguity in the applicable
procedure). Secondly, as mentioned above, Operations did not
participate in the system walkdown following the Provisional j
Release, thereby missing an opportunity to identify the need for a '

Hold Card.

The issue associated with isolation valve MU-45 C resulted from
corrective maintenance activities. AP&L has identified certain
causes for this event. These are: failure to ensure that
adequate work instructions were provided, insufficient focus by
the Maintenance and Operations organizations regarding their
respective responsibilities for returning equipment to service and
an inadequate shift turnover between maintenance shifts.

In the case of the events surrounding maintenance activities on
isolation valve MU-45D, the work instructions for the original
re-assembly of the valve were not sufficiently detailed to assure
complete thread engagement during reassembly. (However, based on
a subsequent elevated pressure leakage test, engineering analysis,
and subsequent thread inspection, AP&L was able to conclude that
RCS pressure boundary integrity was maintained.) Factors
contributing to the improper reassembly of the valve was a metal
burr on the valve threads preventing full thread engagement as
well as the presence of the valve yoke clamp which precluded
visual observation of the valve yoke to valve body gap which would
have indicated incomplete engagement.

3. The Corrective Steps That Have Been Taken and the Results
Achieved

i

In the case of the items related to the uncoupling of the turbine !
driven emergency feedwater pump, AP&L reviewed all Provisional
Releases for outage and non-outage design modifications to assure
that no other operability irsues existed. Briefings were held
with both Maintenance and Operations organizations to reemphasize [
their respective responsibilities to assure equipment operability i

and personnel safety during work evaluations involving removal
from and return to service of plant equipment. Briefings were
also held with these groups on the use of Hold Cards.

The isolation valve repairs on MU-45 C and D resulted in immediate
corrective actions including the cooldown of the unit and stopping
of Reactor Coolant System (RCS) leakage by closing the MU-45C
valve, and the implementation of work plans containing sufficient
instructions to control the requisite work activities and enable
the valve repairs to be completed in an acceptable manner.
Briefings were held with Maintenance and Operations personnel to
benefit from " lessons learned" in these activities. In addition,
valve MU-45D was disassembled, inspected, reassembled and seal
welded under an appropriate work plan. ;

-7-
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Subsequent actions have been taken to strengthen AP&L's programs
in the areas icipacted by this violation. Most notable actions are
management initiatives to reinforce the principles that each )' department has responsibility for nuclear safety and cannot rely
on others to identify problems. Specifically, the interface

! between Operations and Maintenance and their relative
responsibilities has been reemphasized. Management has also
reemphasized that quality is top priority and will analyze
resources commitments to assure adequate attention can be paid to
detail. Additionally, management will increase vigilance to'

assure procedure compliance.
1
'

To communicate these initiatives, training has been conducted
which outlines management's expectations in each area. Specific
procedure changes have also been implemented to provide for a
systematic method of carrying out these expectations. For
example, the Conduct of Maintenance procedures have been revised
to reemphasize overall responsibility to properly complete work
before turning it over to operations. Included in this revision
are requirements to conduct and attend thorough pre-job briefings,
requirements to provide written logs for turnover of job
activities, and criteria for determining the appropriate level of l

detail for work instructions. Additionally, the procedure
includes improved criteria for work plan development and the
criteria for determining when a detailed work plan is necessary.
The revised procedure further requires the job orders to be
located at the job location.

The Conduct of Oporti'ans procedure has-also been revised to
emphasize Operations responsibility to assure work is ,

satisfactorily completed before returning equipment to service.
The ANO-1 & 2 procedures for provisional release and the use of
hold cards has also been modified +o minimize possible
misinterpretation. The limited exceptions to the hold card
process are now clearly delineated in that procedure. With these
limited exceptions, management has emphasized strict compliance to
the hold card process.

Additional changes have been made to other plant procedures
including revisions to the installation plan procedure to provide
more rigorous guidance for post-installation testing. Revisions
to the plant start-up procedure have also been implemented to
require the EFW steam driven pump to be coupled prior to reaching
an RCS temperature of 280 F.

Additionally, AP&L has considered other Technical Specifications
to assess whether other provisions could be interpreted
ambiguously.

I

4. Corrective Steps That Will Be Taken To Avoid Further Violations

In addition, as announced on April 5, 1989, AP&L is making
management and organizational changes at ANO. Among other
changes, we plan to place the two ANO units under separate
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managers to make management more focused to meet the day-to-day
needs of the two different units. This organization restructuring
will result in improved accountability, better focus on day-to-day
operation, promote safe and efficient operation of Arkansas Nuclear
One and should result in an overall improvement in safety and
quality performance.

5. Date of Full Compliance

For the identified deficiencies, full compliance has been
achieved.

|

|
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